
 
 

 

 
Meeting of:   

 
Integrated Commissioning Board 

Date: Tuesday, 30th June, 2020 
Time: 3.30 pm. 
Venue: Zoom Meeting 

 
This agenda gives notice of items to be considered in private as required by 
Regulations 5 (4) and (5) of The Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) 
(Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012; and, The 
Local Authorities and Police and Crime Panels (Coronavirus) (Flexibility of 
Local Authority and Police and Crime Panel Meetings) (England and Wales) 
Regulations 2020 
 
The meeting can be viewed as a live stream embedded on the meeting page on 
the Council’s website or on the Council’s YouTube channel 
www.youtube.com/user/rochdalebc 
 

Item 
No. 

AGENDA Page No 

1   Apologies   

 To receive any apologies for absence.  

2   Minutes  4 - 8 

 To consider the minutes of the meeting of the Integrated 

Commissioning Board meeting held on 26 May 2020. 

 

3   Declarations of Interest   

 Members are required to declare any disclosable pecuniary, personal 

or personal and prejudicial interests they may have and the nature of 

those interests relating to items on this agenda and/or indicate if S106 

of the Local Government Finance Act 1992 applies to them.    

 

4   Items for Exclusion of Public and Press   

 To determine any items on the agenda, if any, where the public are to 

be excluded from the meeting. 

 

 

Public Document Pack

http://www.youtube.com/user/rochdalebc


5   Urgent Items of Business   

 To determine whether there are any additional items of business 

which, by reason of special circumstances, the Chair decides should 

be considered at the meeting as a matter of urgency. 

 

6   Health and Social Care Pooled Budget Monitoring Report- May 

2020  

9 - 19 

 To consider the attached report from the Chief Finance Officer (Health 

& Social Care Integration) 

 

7   NHS and Care standards monitoring and  approach  20 - 34 

 To consider the attached report from the Assistant Director of 

Commissioning 

 

8   Local Care Organisation and Strategic Commissioning Function 

Development - Next Steps  

35 - 41 

 To consider the attached report from the Director of Integrated 

Systems Development 

 

9   Exclusion of Press and Public   

 To consider that the press and public be excluded from the remaining 

part of the meeting pursuant to Section 100(A)4 of the Local 

Government Act 1972 on the grounds that discussions may involve the 

likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in the provisions of 

Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 1972 and public 

interest would not be served in publishing the information.  

 

10   COVID 19 CCG Finance  42 - 54 

 To consider the attached report from the Chief Finance Officer (Health 

& Social Care Integration) 

 

11   Approval to agree a commissioning model for Extra Care Housing  55 - 66 

 To consider the attached report from the Director of Commissioning  



 
 

 

Integrated Commissioning Board Members 
Councillor Iftikhar Ahmed Dr Bodrul Alam 
Councillor Allen Brett Graham Burgess 
Denise Dawson Dr Chris Duffy 
Councillor Kieran Heakin Joanne Newton 
Councillor Sara Rowbotham  
 

For more information about this meeting, please contact  
Michael Garraway 
01706 924718 
michael.garraway2@rochdale.gov.uk 



INTEGRATED COMMISSIONING BOARD 
 

MINUTES OF MEETING 
Tuesday, 26 May 2020 

 
PRESENT:  G. Burgess (Independent Chair); HMR CCG: Dr York, D. 
Dawson, and J. Newton; RBC: Councillor Brett, Councillor Heakin; Councillors 
Iftikhar Ahmed, Brett, Heakin, and Rowbotham 
 
OFFICERS: HMR CCG - K. Hurley (Deputy Accountable Officer), J. Evans 
(Deputy Chief Finance Officer) S. Croasdale (Strategic Commissioning 
Director). S.Rumbelow (Chief Executive/Accountable Officer), S. McIvor (Joint 
Director of Commissioning/DASS) A. Fallon (Director of Public Health), N. 
Thornton (Director of Resources), T. Harrison (Assistant Director – 
Commissioning) and M. Garraway (Resources Directorate).  
 
APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE: Dr B. Alam; S. Evans (Chief Finance Officer – 
Health & Social Care Integration) 
 

1 MINUTES 
Consideration was given to the minutes of the meeting of the Integrated 
Commissioning Board held on 25 February 2020 
 
RESOLVED 
That the minutes of the meeting of the Integrated Commissioning Board held 
on the 25 February 2020 be approved as a correct record. 
 

2 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
There were no declarations of interest relating to items on the agenda. 
 

3 BETTER CARE FUND BUDGET REPORT 2020/21 
Consideration was given to a report of the Chief Finance Officer – Health & 
Social Care Integration, seeking approval of the revised revenue and capital 
budgets for the Better Care Fund for 2020/21; including the proposed 
allocation of the Disabled Facilities Grants, with the flexibility to vire budget 
between the various schemes as necessary.  Members were advised that 
details of the minimum contribution to Adult Social Care had yet to be 
confirmed, and so the proposed revenue budget was subject to change. 
 
Overall, the Better Care Fund had increased by £0.889m due to a 5.22% 
increase in Clinical Commissioning Group contributions to the Better Care 
Fund. The Council’s Better Care Fund contributions were in line with the 
2019/20 contributions as the grants had remained at the same level. The 
overall increase in Better Care Funding for 2020/21 was 3.03%. 
 
The capital Disabled Facilities Grant budget for 2020/21 had been confirmed 
as £2.632m, the same as the allocation received in 2019/20. Table 2 within 
the submitted report included a draft spending plan submitted for approval but 
did not take account of any 2019/20 capital budgets to be carried forward. 
 

Page 4

Agenda Item 2



Alternatives considered 
There were no alternatives considered 
 
RESOLVED 
1. That approval be given to the revised revenue and capital budgets for 

the Better Care Fund for 2020/21. 
2. That it be noted the details of the minimum contribution to Adult 

Social Care has yet to be confirmed, and so the proposed revenue 
budget is subject to change. 

3. That approval be given to the proposed allocation of the Disabled 
Facilities Grant budget with the flexibility to vire budget between the 
various schemes as necessary, subject to executive decision making 
arrangments. 

 
4 HEALTH & SOCIAL CARE POOL BUDGET OUTTURN 2019/20 

Consideration was given to a report of the Chief Finance Officer – Health & 
Social Care Integration updating the Integrated Commissioning Board on the 
financial position of the pooled budget for the financial year 2019/20 as at the 
end of March 2020.  Members were informed that the pooled budget excludes 
the Better Care Fund and the Greater Manchester Transformation funding 
which were reported separately.  
 
The pooled budget has been amended to take into account the savings 
previously reported.  The remaining pool gap of £0.8m reported in February 
2020 had been funded via an increased contribution from the Clinical 
Commissioning Group (CCG).  There had been an increase in the overspend 
against the Health & Social Care (H&SC) Pool budget gap of £0.6m due to an 
increase in the Adult Social Care overspend. This pressure has been funded 
to balance the H&SC pool budget for 2019/20. 
 
The outturn for the Council pooled budgets for 2019/20, before adjusting for 
additional contributions was a £1.8m overspend for Adult Social Care, a 
break-even position for Public Health and a £1.7m overspend on Children’s 
services. The £1.7m overspend from Children’s services had been managed 
by the Council outside of the pool.  The CCG pooled budget outturn position 
was a £2.7m overspend. 
 
RESOLVED 
1. That it be noted the increase in the Health & Social Care pool 

overspend of £0.6m had been funded initially by the Council in 
2019/20 would result in a reduced contribution to the pool in 2020/21 

2. That it be noted the Council identified mitigating actions for the 
variations in 2019/20 (£1.7m). 

3. That it be noted the £2.7m of pressures on the acute and mental 
health budgets for 2019/20, and that the CCG contributed additional 
funding from reserves to cover the £0.9m increase in overspend 
since initial contributions to close the pool gap had been previously 
agreed by the Integrated Commissioning Board. 

 

Page 5



5 HEALTH & SOCIAL CARE BETTER CARE FUND OUTTURN REPORT 
2019/20 
Consideration was given to a report of the Director of Commissioning updating 
the Integrated Commissioning Board on the financial outturn position for the 
Better Care Fund for the financial year 2019/20.  Members were advised that 
the revenue spend for 19/20 was £106k below budget, which had in turn been 
used to support Adult Social Care Services, following an increase in demand 
during the final quarter of the year.  There had been an underspend of £636k 
on capital budgets which would be carried forward. 
 
RESOLVED 
That the report be noted. 
 

6 HEALTH AND CARE NEXT PHASE PLANNING 
Consideration was given to a report of the Director of Integrated Systems 
Development outlining the next planning phase for Health and Care 
development, taking into account learning from the locality response to the 
COVID-19 pandemic. 
 
Members were provided an update on the position of the Strategic 
Commissioning Function (SCF) and Local Care Organisation (LCO) prior to 
COVID-19; detailed analysis of work undertaken in the response to COVID-19 
and consideration of how this learning could be embedded in future delivery 
and system operating arrangements. 
 
Learning would focus on four key learning themes: 

 Integrated leadership and cultural change 

 A focus on the out of hospital offer 

 Primary care transformation 

 Integrated/shared enabling functions 
 
The strategic aims and priorities originally considered for the LCO contracting 
arrangements have been reviewed and will be further considered in a revised 
scope and phasing timeline. 
 
RESOLVED 
That the report be noted. 
 

7 SECOND PHASE NHS RESPONSE TO COVID-19 - LOCALITY RESPONSE 
Consideration was given to a report of Director of Integrated Systems 
Development providing details of the local response to the expectations of all 
NHS organisations as they moved into the second phase response to COVID-
19 as set out in a letter dated 29th April 2020 Sir Simon Stevens, Chief 
Executive Officer of the NHS. 
 
Sir Simon Stevens’s letter set out requirements to step up a response to Non-
COVID-19 related urgent services with the report setting out the early risk 
assessment against each of the requirements including any actions required 
and a residual risk assessment.  The will form the starting point for a system 
wide recovery plan. 

Page 6



 
RESOLVED 
That the report be noted. 
 

8 ADULT SOCIAL CARE ACCOMMODATION MARKET POSITION 
STATEMENT 
Consideration was given to a report of the Director of Commissioning for 
approval of the publication of the accommodation strategy and market position 
statement for the borough of Rochdale on the Council’s website. 
 
The strategy sets out the approach to commissioning specialist 
accommodation providing support for residents’ who may need it, and outlines 
the strategic context in which this work is undertaken. The market position 
statement outlines the current state of the market within the borough and will 
continue to be updated regularly to reflect changes as they occur. 
 
Alternatives considered 
Not to publish the strategy until the figures have been revised based on the 
impact of Covid-19. This was discounted on the basis that: 

a) It will be unclear what the impact of Covid-19 will be on the market for 
some time. 

b) It would delay the ability of commissioners to have meaningful 
conversation with providers about the Council’s commissioning 
intentions. 

c) The next phase of developing the plan for this area of work would be 
delayed, with the potential to impact on the potential benefits 
associated. 

 
RESOLVED 
That approval be given to the publication of the accommodation strategy 
and market position statement for the borough of Rochdale on the 
Council’s website, along with the following caveat and time-table: 
This document was prepared, and all the data and information included 
in it was all gathered, before the Covid-19 virus affected the UK. 
Since then radical changes have occurred, and the effects of the virus 
have had a major impact on the validity of the evidence relied on as a 
predictor of future requirements. The assumptions and the conclusions 
we can draw within this document must therefore be subject to the 
possibility of revision in light of the impact of the virus on this sector. 
However, as our general approach to commissioning is likely to remain 
the same, we have decided to publish it with the above caveat. We are 
reviewing the statement in light of the new situation and we reserve the 
right to make amendments to this documents over the coming months. 
The time-table for such re-publication is below: 

 Analysis of impact – May 2020 

 Revision of data – June 2020 

 Re-publish – July 2020 
 
 
 

Page 7



Reason for resolution 
The Care Act also places a requirement on the council to promote an effective 
market for care and support services, so we have developed this adult social 
care accommodation strategy and market position statement. 
 

9 EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 
RESOLVED 
That the Press and Public be excluded from the meeting during consideration 
of the following five items of business, in accordance with the provisions of 
Section 100A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972, as amended. 
  
Reason for the resolution 
Should the press and public remain during debate on these three items there 
may be a disclosure of information that is deemed to be exempt under Parts 1 
and 4 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972. 
 

10 POOLED FUND OPENING BUDGETS 2021 
Consideration was given to a report of Chief Finance Officer – Health & Social 
Care Integration) seeking approval from the Integrated Commissioning Board 
on the Pooled fund opening budget and risk share arrangements for 2020/21. 
Members were informed that the Council’s budget had been approved at the 
meeting on February 2020 with the Clinical Commissioning Group submitting 
its second draft set of plans to NHS England on Thursday 5th of March 2020. 
 
In response to a Members request that the decision be deferred until the 
impact of Covid-19 on the pooled fund could be fully understood, the Chair 
advised that the opening budget would not be amended by the implications 
and that the impact on the budget would be reported in further monitoring 
updates at future meetings of the Integrated Commissioning Board. 
 
Alternatives considered 
No alternatives were considered as it is a requirement of the National Health 
Service England guidance to produce a budget for 2020/21. 
 
RESOLVED 
1. That the opening budgets be approved.  
2. That the revised risk share arrangements for the Pooled fund be 

noted. 
 
Reason for resolution 
Determination of the Health and Social Care pooled budgets for 
2020/21 in line with National Health Service England guidelines and the 
Greater Manchester (GM) Health and Social Care Partnership requirements is 
a function of the Integrated Commissioning Board. 
 

Page 8



Report to Integrated Commissioning Board 
 

 

 Date of Meeting – 30th June 2020  
Portfolio- Integrated Commissioning Lead Member- Councillor Rowbotham  
Report Author- Gareth Davies Lead Officer- Sam Evans 
Public Document  

 

 

Health and Social Care Pooled Budget Monitoring  Report-  
                                        May 2020 

 

 

Executive Summary 

 
1.1 
 
 
 
 
 
1.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1.3 
 
 
 
1.4 
 
 
 
 
 
1.5 
 
 
 
 
 

To update the Integrated Commissioning Board (ICB) on the financial position 
of the pooled budget for the financial year 2020/21 as at the end of May 2020. 
The pooled budget excludes the Better Care Fund (BCF) which is being 
reported separately to the ICB in 2020/21. The pooled budget has been 
amended to take into account the savings previously reported to ICB.  
 
The Covid pandemic has caused a change in funding arrangements for the 
CCG, and there is uncertainty around the impact Covid will have on both 
partners this year. As a result of this uncertainty it was agreed at ICB and 
Cabinet on the 26th of May that the Health & Social Care Pool budget risk 
share agreement is changed for 2020/21 so that both partners are responsible 
for their own pooled fund gap and in year underspend or overspend. 
 
As previously reported to the May meeting of ICB The CCG opening pool gap 
on the Health & Social Care pooled budget for 2020/21 was £4.1m. The LA 
had set a balanced position for the LA Pooled Budgets. 
 
As at the end of May the LA is reporting a £2m pool pressure in relation to 
ASC budgets. It was originally anticipated that this would be funded in 2020/21 
via a loan from the Health and Social Care Partnership but it has since been 
confirmed that this is no longer available.  The LA is working to address how 
these budgets will be funded going forward.  
 
The CCG finance regime is currently under a national command and control 
approach, whereby the CCG is instructed on how much to pay NHS providers 
and primary care contractors. This is in place for months 1-4 of this financial 
year. CCGs are also instructed to record all of their COVID related 
expenditure on a monthly basis.  This expenditure along with all other CCG 
expenditure is analysed for reasonableness.  As a consequence of this 

Page 9

Agenda Item 6



 
 
 
 
1.6 

approach CCGs should receive a reconciling payment which either increases 
or decreases their national allocation in line with their expenditure to achieve 
a break even position. 
 
As at the end of May there has been £1.0m of Covid related costs in relation 
to health against the Health & Social Care Pool Budget. This is against a total 
health COVID cost of £1.8m which has been claimed against the NHS Covid 
fund. There is also £8.8m which forms part of the Local Authority £42m 
pressure to which £13.6m of funding has been received from the Government 
to date. The Local Authority continues to work alongside the Greater 
Manchester Combined Authority to attract additional funding from the 
Government and to understand the impact of these pressures on the Council’s 
Medium Term Financial Strategy. 
 
 

Recommendation 

 
2.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
2.2 
 
 
 
 
 
2.3 

ICB notes the pressure on the H&SC pool budget as at the end of May is 
break even in relation to the CCG and should remain so until the end of July.  
If the current national finance regime continues for the remainder of this 
financial year there should be no pressure in relation to health budgets.  
However, if the current regime was to end at the 31st July a pro rata pressure 
of £2.7m would remain, along with a £2m baseline in year pressure on LA 
pool budgets. 
 
As at the end of May, £9.8m of Covid costs are forecast against the Health & 
Social Care Pool Budget. £1.0m of these costs have been reclaimed from the 
NHS Covid fund, and £8.8m forms part of the Local Authority overall Covid-
19 pressure of £42m of which £13.6m Government funding has been received 
to date. 
 
The LA is working to address how the £2m adult social care pressure will be 
funded going forward.  To support the addressing of this pressure, it should 
be noted that the service and the finance team are commencing a financial 
sustainability review along with a review of new operating models to 
understand the increasing pressures within adult social care and the ongoing 
impacts of COVID. 

 
 

Reason for Recommendation 

 
3.1 
 
 
 
 
 
3.2 

This report updates the ICB on the Health and Social Care pooled budgets for 
2020/21 in line with National Health Service England (NHSE) guidelines and 
the Greater Manchester (GM) Health and Social Care Partnership 
requirements. As part of operating a pooled budget regular monitoring reports 
are required. 
 
The BCF has been excluded from the pooled reporting and will be reported 
separately to ICB in line with NHSE requirements for reporting each quarter.  
 
 

Page 10



Key Points for Consideration 

 
4.1 
 
 
 
 
4.2 
 
4.3 
 
 
 
 

The pooling of budgets between the two organisations, LA and CCG, is in line 
with NHSE guidelines to progress integration of Adult Social Care and Health 
and is in accordance with the decision made by Cabinet and the CCG 
Governing Body. 
  
The operation of a formal pooled budget has been in place from April 2018.  
 
Alternatives Considered 
The operation of a formal pool in 2020/21 builds on the shadow pool that was 
operated by the ICB in 2017/18 and is in line with 2018/19 & 2019/20 
reporting; therefore there are no alternatives to consider. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 11



Costs and Budget Summary 

 
5.1 Table 1 below shows the opening Health & Social Care Pool Budget for 

2020/21.  It should be noted that this is before the national approach for NHS 

budgets was enforced for months 1-4 of this financial year 

 Table 1 

  

 

 

 

2020/21 Expenditure Budgets

Opening 

2020/21 

Budget 

£m's

Adult's Services

Management, Support and Commissioning 3.1

Adults, Older People and Physical Disability 43.7

Learning Disability / Mental Health 58.9

Acute Health Care 116.2

Primary Care - Prescribing 32.3

Other Services 3.7

Adult Public Health 7.7

Total Adult Pooled Services 265.6

Children's Services

Management, Support and Commissioning 2.9

Children's Early Intervention 6.6

Health Community Services 7.2

Learning Disability / Mental Health 7.2

Special Educational Needs 4.1

Acute Health Care 23.0

Children 0-19 Public Health 5.0

Cared for Children and Safeguarding 30.7

Primary Care - Prescribing 8.6

Other Services 0.8

Total Children's Pooled Services 96.1

Total Health and Social Care Pooled Budgets 361.7

Contribution from Partners

CCG -255.3

LA -102.3

Total Contributions -357.6

Opening Gap 4.1

Health and Social Care Pooled Budget 2020/21

Page 12



5.2 NHSE Current Arrangements 

The CCG has received 4 months allocations to cover April to July expenditure 

in 2020/21. The calculation of the budgets is based on the Agreement of 

Balances exercise undertaken at month 09 which aims to highlight any 

mismatches between NHS organisations in relation to finances. This was then 

amended based on month 11 actual expenditure in CCG ledgers. 

CCG’s have then been instructed to pay those trusts with a high expenditure 

with the CCG a block value based on the calculations above. The allocation to 

match this expenditure has been given to CCG’s.   

CCG’s only expenditure with NHS Trusts should be as those identified by 

NHSE. The trusts identified for HMR CCG can be seen below along with the 

monthly block payments.  It should be noted that CCGs have been instructed 

to pay a month in advance for these block contracts:- 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 13



April - July Block Payments 

 

Provider 

£000  

per month 

PENNINE ACUTE NHS TRUST 14,612  

PENNINE CARE NHS FT 2,894  

SALFORD ROYAL NHSFT 1,150  

NW AMBUL SVC NHST 876  

MANC UNI NHS FT 891  

THE CHRISTIE NHS FT 110  

WRIGHT/WGN/LEIGH NHS FT 86  

TAMESIDE HOSPITAL NHSFT 65  

ROYAL BOLTON HOSP NHSFT 46  

CALDERDALE/HUDD NHS FT 28  

EAST LANCS NHS TRUST 44  

MERSEY CARE NHS FT 19  

LEEDS TH NHST 20  

CHESH/WIRRAL PART NHSFT 27  

TOTAL 20,868  

  

Non NHS providers should be paid based on activity or as per the contract agreed 

in previous years.  There should be no investment in new services at this time.  Any 

overspend the CCG encounters must be explained to NHSE who will then fund this 

pressure.  At present, guidance has only been released relating to April to July. 

Beyond this, the CCG has no official guidance at present.   

5.3 As part of the national and regional approach to decision making decisions are also 

being made at regional levels that impact upon the CCG.  The CCG was informed 

on the 4th May that the NHS 111 contract with NWAS which is managed by 

Blackpool CCG and was due to expire at the end of September this year has been 

extended for a further 3 years.  It has been agreed that during this period there will 

be an annual review of performance, activity and costs. 

Page 14



5.4 Table 2 below shows the latest monitoring position against the Health & Social 

Care Pooled Budget as at the end of May. Due to the current finance regime 

the CCG finds itself in the table has been produced to reflect the 4 months 

CCG budgets as determined by NHSE/I with a balancing figure that reflects 

the remaining 8 months on a pro rata basis to the original CCG opening 

budgets as per table 1 above. 

Table 2 

 

Health and Social Care Pooled Budget 2020/21

2020/21 

Budget

2020/21 

Forecast
Variance

£m's £m's £m's

Expenditure Budgets

Adult's Services

Management, Support and 

Commissioning
3.1 3.1 0.0

Adults, Older People and Physical 

Disability
18.1 24.9 6.8

- It was anticipated that £1.7m of LA costs in this 

category would be funded in 2020/21 via a loan from the 

Health and Social Care Partnership but it has since 

been confirmed that this is no longer available.

- There are £5.1m LA Covid pressures forecast against 

this area.

Learning Disability / Mental Health 36.8 37.1 0.3
-£0.3m of LA costs for LD/MH were anticipated to be 

funded via the loan mentioned above.

Acute Health Care 37.2 37.1 -0.1

-The £0.1m relates to reduced activity levels across non 

NHS providers up until the end of May.

Primary Care - Prescribing 10.3 11.0 0.7
The overspend is due to an overperformance on CAT M 

drugs

Other Services 2.1 2.1 0.0  

Adult Public Health 8.0 8.5 0.5
- There are £0.5m LA Covid pressures forecast against 

Public Health budgets.

CCG Adults Budget August 2020 to 

March 2021
141.8 141.8 0.0

-This represents the forecast CCG Adult Services 

expenditure budgets for August to March 2021 if the 

current funding arrangements were to end as at the 31st 

of July.

Total Adult Pooled Services 257.4 265.6 8.2

Children's Services

Management, Support and 

Commissioning
3.0 3.0 0.0

Children's Early Intervention 6.6 6.6 0.0

Health Community Services 10.0 9.6 -0.4
Funding has been provided above current costs due to 

the cessation of transformation.

Learning Disability / Mental Health 2.3 2.3 0.0

Special Educational Needs 4.2 4.2 0.0

Acute Health Care 7.4 7.4 0.0

Children 0-19 Public Health 5.3 5.3 0.0

Cared for Children and Safeguarding 30.7 34.6 3.9
- There are £3.9m LA Covid pressures forecast against 

Children's Services.

Primary Care - Prescribing 2.7 2.9 0.2 Overperformance on CAT M drugs

Other Services 0.8 0.6 -0.2 Underperformance in activity as per the CCG database

CCG Childrens Budget August 2020 

to March 2021
31.2 31.2 0.0

-This represents the forecast CCG Children's Services 

expenditure budgets for August to March 2021 if the 

current funding arrangements were to end as at the 31st 

of July.

Total Children's Pooled Services 104.2 107.7 3.5

Total Health and Social Care 

Pooled Budgets
361.6 373.3 11.7

Contribution from Partners

CCG -255.8 -256.8 -1.0

LA -103.1 -103.1 0.0

Total Contributions -358.9 -359.9 -1.0

Forecast Position 2.7 13.4 10.7

The revised gap of £13.4m represents 

'- The £2.7m remaining pool gap if the current health 

funding arrangements end on the 31st of July, 

- an £8.8m net forecast of LA Covid pressures and 

- a further £2m pressure on LA ASC budgets

- a net underspend of £0.1m as at the end of May on 

CCG pooled budgets after taking account of the Covid 

funding received from health.

May Monitoring position Narrative

The CCG has received £1.0m Covid health funding to 

offset pooled Covid costs included above.

Page 15



5.5 Since the 2020/21 pool budgets were set, the LA’s pool budgets have increased 

by £0.8m due to £0.4m of public health inflationary increases not initially 

budgeted for, £0.2m of bridging funding due to a delay in Public Health 

prevention contract savings, and £0.2m of budgets carried forward from 

2019/20. These increases have been offset by an increased contribution of 

£0.8m from the LA. 

5.6 As at the end of May the LA is reporting a £2m pool pressure in relation to Adult 

Social Care budgets. This pressure representing the continuation of services 

that were previously funded by Transformation Funding and were planned to 

be funded from a GM HSCP loan in 20/21. It has been confirmed the loan will 

not to be available in 20/21. The Adult Care Service along with support from 

Finance Service is working to address how these budgets will be funded going 

forward. 

 Covid 19 

 CCG Impact 

5.7 The CCG is able to reclaim costs incurred as a result of Covid-19.  The 

information regarding expenditure is submitted via a monthly return to NHSE 

England (NHSE). NHSE will then reimburse the CCG retrospectively for these 

costs if they are deemed reasonable. 

5.8 For the financial year 2020/21 to the end of May, the CCG has submitted the 

return to show the below Covid-19 Expenditure as part of the monthly return:

 

 

 This table is included for completeness however £0.8m of these costs sit within 

primary care which is outside of the pooled fund. £1.0m of the total CCGs 

COVID claim falls within the pooled fund.   

 LA Impact 

5.9 The LA has received £13.6m of funding to offset additional expenditure and 

reduced income caused by the impact of Covid-19. Currently the pressure is 

£42m which exceeds the funding that has been received. 

Page 16



The LA submitted a return to MHCLG on 15th May detailing the forecast 

additional expenditure and loss of income expected during 2019/20 and 

2020/21.  

Below is a summary of forecast additional expenditure, totalling c£13.4m: 

 

 Below is summary detail of the forecast loss of income, currently c£28.3m: 

  

  

5.10 Currently the impact is projected at c£41.7m. £13.6m LA specific funding has 

been received to offset these pressures, and £0.7m of pooled LA costs incurred 

to date have been charged against the NHS Covid 19 pot. Work continues by 

the Local Authority to understand the impact of Covid-19 on the Council’s 

Area of expenditure £m

Adult Social Care - additional demand 3.326

Adult Social Care - supporting the market 0.530

Adult Social Care - workforce pressures 0.005

Adult Social Care - other (including PPE) 1.241

Children's Social Care - workforce pressures 0.156

Children's Social Care - other 3.707

Public Health 0.550

Housing (including homelessness services) 0.614

Cultural services 1.150

Environmental and regulatory services (including excess 

death management) 0.534

Planning and development 0.000

Finance/ corporate services 0.281

Other services 1.267

Estimated Total Spending Pressures 13.361

LA Covid 19 Forecast Pressures 2020/21 £'m

Cost Pressures

Pooled LA Cost Pressures 9.516

Other LA Cost Pressures 3.845

Total Loss of Income 28.305

Estimated Total Pressure 41.667

LA Covid 19 Funding Received -13.616

Pooled LA expenditure reclaimed from NHS Covid 

Funding as at the end of May
-0.657

Net Covid 19 Pressure 27.394

Page 17



Medium Term Financial Strategy. At a Greater Manchester level there is work 

being undertaken to understand the impact of Covid-19 on the Transport levy, 

Fire and Rescue, and the Waste Disposal levy, each of which may have an 

impact on Rochdale’s overall position. Collectively the 10 Districts within 

Greater Manchester continue to work with the Government to secure further 

funding against these pressures, however at this stage there is no certainty. 

5.11 Forecast Covid 19 related expenditure pressures against LA pooled budgets 

total £9.516m, of which £0.657m has been charged against the NHS Covid fund 

for costs claimed up until May. 

5.12 In May it was announced that the LA will receive a £2.2m share of the Care 

Home Infection Control grant. 75% of this grant is to be paid direct to in borough 

care homes, and the LA has discretion on how the remaining 25% is allocated 

within the terms and conditions of the grant. This is expected to lead to a 

reduction in the ASC cost pressures identified above, but the full impact is not 

yet known.   

5.13 There are a number of aligned services which sit outside of the pooled budget 

which are listed in table 3. These are not under the control of the ICB but are 

included here for information, decision making around these budgets remains 

with the LA or CCG.  

 Table 3 

   

 

Service Host

Budget 

£000's

Health Protection PH 160

Physical Activity PH 544

Other Public Health PH 1,192

Link4Life PH 2,368

Management and Strategy CSC 243

Shared Services with Bury CSC 574

Sufficiency and Access CSC 45

School Improvement, Organisation and Personnel CSC 855

Educational Psychology/Co ordinator CSC 456

Regional Adoption Agency CSC 1,279

Primary Care CCG 6,937

Acute Services CCG 49,254

Core Running Costs CCG 4,128

Primary Care & Co Commissioning CCG 39,010

Other CCG CCG 1,340

Total Aligned Services 108,385

Aligned Services

Page 18



Risk and Policy Implications 

 
6.1 
 
 
 
 
 
6.2 

The pooled budget has been agreed to be operated in 2020/21. Section 75 
of the National Health Service 2006 Act gives powers to local authorities and 
health bodies to establish and maintain pooled funds out of which payment 
may be made towards expenditure incurred in the exercise of prescribed LA 
functions and prescribed NHS functions. 
 
Under the Section 75 Risk Share agreement, If a revenue overspend or 
underspend remains at the end of a financial year, the Partners agree that 
such underspends and overspends will be managed by the respective 
organisation in 2020/21.  This is as a consequence of the different financial 
regimes and funding for COVID and will be revisited for 2021/22. 
 

Consultation 

 
7.1 There is no requirement for consultation on the contents of this report other 

than with the partners i.e. the CCG and the LA. Relevant officers from both 
organisations have been consulted on the content of this report. 
 

 

Background Papers Place of Inspection 

 

8.1  LA Monitoring working papers 
 
CCG Monitoring working papers 

Number 1 Riverside 

Number 1 Riverside 

 

For Further Information Contact: Gareth Davies 

gareth.davies@rochdale.gov.uk 

01706 924888  

 

 

 

 

 

Page 19



1 
 

 

Report to Integrated Commissioning Board 
 

 

Date of Meeting 30th June 2020    
Portfolio Public Health and Wellbeing   
Report Author Nadia Baig    
Public/Private Document Public   
    

 

COVID 19 NHS & Care standards monitoring and approach  
 

 

Executive Summary 

 
1. 
 
 
 
1.1 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1.2 

The response to the Covid-19 pandemic has required changes in ways of 
working across health and social care in order to meet the needs of the 
population.  

This report outlines the changes in health and care standards monitoring 
during the COVID- 19 response and seeks to provide the Integrated 
Commissioning Board with an overview of those changes 
The report aims to: 
 

 Provide an overview of the approach to NHS standards and 
monitoring during the COVID 19 response 

 Provide an overview of the approach to Care standards and 
monitoring during the COVID 19 response  
 

The report outlines the approach taken and gives an overview of impact on 
performance standards and monitoring. 

 

Recommendation 

 
2. ICB are asked to note the content of the paper. 
  

 

Reason for Recommendation 

 
3. 
 

 
The actions and developments in health are due to direct guidance from 
NHS England and NHS improvement. The report seeks to update ICB on 
this guidance and the approach taken in Rochdale. 
 

Page 20

Agenda Item 7



2 
 

 

Key Points for Consideration 

 
4. 
 
 
4.1 
 
 
4.2 
 
 
4.2.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.2.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.2.3 
 
 
 
4.2.4 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.2.5 
 
 
 
4.2.6 
 
 
 
 
4.3 

The response to  the COVID-19 pandemic  has required a broad range of 
changes in ways of working across the health and care system.  
 
The focus of the changes is for the benefit of the system ensuring that there 
is an ability to continue to respond to the needs of the population at all 
times. 
 
The NHS and Care system works to a number of standards and targets for 
which there are a range of measures these include 
 
NHS Constitution and Supporting Measures. The Constitution 
establishes the principles and values of the NHS in England. It sets out 
rights to which patients, public and staff are entitled, and pledges which the 
NHS is committed to achieve, together with responsibilities which the 
public, patients and staff owe to one another to ensure that the NHS 
operates fairly and effectively. 
 
NHS Oversight Framework (NHS OF). This framework replaced the CCG 
Improvement and Assessment Framework (CCG IAF) in 2019/20 and 
represents a joint approach by NHS England and NHS Improvement to 
oversee organisational performance and identify where commissioners and 
providers may need support. CCG level indicators are categorised as: New 
Service Models; Preventing ill health and reducing inequalities; Quality of 
care and outcomes; Leadership and workforce; Finance and use of 
resources.  
 
Better Care Fund (BCF). This is a programme spanning both the NHS and 
local government for the purpose of delivering improvements in the 
integration of local health and social care systems.  
 
CCG Outcome Indicator Set (CCG OIS). This framework exists to hold 
CCGs to account for the quality of services and the health outcomes 
achieved through commissioning. The indicators within the framework have 
been selected on the basis that they contribute to the overarching aims of 
the five domains in the NHS Outcomes Framework: Preventing people from 
dying prematurely; Enhancing quality of life for people with long term 
conditions; Helping people to recover from episodes of ill health or following 
injury; Ensuring that people have a positive experience of care; Treating 
and caring for people in a safe environment and protecting them from 
avoidable harm. 
 
The Adult social care outcomes framework (ASCOF) measures how 
well care and support services achieve the outcomes that matter most to 
people. These are reported on annually. 
 
There are local adult social care key performance indicators which are 
collected and reported on a monthly basis. There are a number of key 

Page 21



3 
 

 
 
4.4 
 
 
4.5  
 
 
 
 
4.5.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
4.5.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.5.3 
 
 
 
 
4.5.4 
 
 
 
4.6   
 
4.6.1 
 
 
 
 
 
 

standards which are routinely reported to the Integrated Commissioning 
board with the health performance data. 
 
In total there are over 200 indicators which are monitored and reported on 
through performance reports. 
 
Changes were required to the ways of working in order to support the NHS 
and care system in the response to the COVID 19 pandemic.  
 
On 28th March 2020 Amanda Pritchard, Chief Operating Officer NHS 
England and NHS Improvement wrote to all CCG accountable officers and 
all NHS Chief Executives outlining  how the NHS was required to free up 
capacity and resources to support the system response (see appendix 1) 
 
This letter set out: 

 System actions  

 Approach to governance and meetings 

 Reporting and assurance  

 Approach to HR and staff related activities 

 The approach to the standards most impacted by the COVID 19 
response  

 Data collections and reporting 

 Data security and protection toolkit submission for 2019/20 
 
The approach to the standards most affected by the COVID19 response is 
outlined below for the benefit of the ICB 
 

 A&E and Ambulance performance – monitoring continues to support 
the system resilience.  

 Referral to treatment times (RTT) , monitoring  continues however 
suspension of normal payment regimes to Trusts has meant that 
financial sanctions for breaches of waiting times over 52 weeks have 
been suspended. 

 Cancer – the letter was clear that treatment should continue. Cancer 
standards monitoring was required to continue but would not be 
subject to formal performance management. 

 
The framework from NHS England and NHS Improvement set the approach 
and way of working. This has been addressed by the health and care 
system and has supported the release of capacity to enable a full system 
response to the COVID 19 pandemic. 
 
Performance reports have not been produced during the COVID response 
due to the need to focus on the system response. Planning guidance for the 
NHS is anticipated in the near future to support the approach moving 
forwards 
 
System impact in the key areas 
 
A&E and ambulance performance – pressure on emergency services led to 
a decline in performance against reported standards with the onset of the 

Page 22



4 
 

4.6.2 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4.6.3 
 
 
 
4.6.4 
 
 
 
 
4.7 
 
4.7.1 

pandemic. There has been improvement associated with the reduction in 
activity. Demand is starting to increase and work is underway to support 
sustained system improvement as part of the recovery process 
 
 
Referral to Treatment Times – The COVID-19 pandemic necessitated a 
cancellation of all planned (non cancer) activity for April May and June 
2020. Work is underway to re-start this work in collaboration with providers. 
This means that the overall waiting list numbers are reduced but that there 
are increased waiting times for patients. The guidance issued in March 2020 
was clear that there will be no penalties for 52 + week waits. Further 
guidance is awaited about how to apply patient choice around waiting times.  
 
Cancer – Across Greater Manchester Cancer surgery has been able to 
continue. The development of the Greater Manchester Hub approach has 
supported this.   
 
Social care standards – there has been no change in the approach to the 
social care standards. Delayed transfers of care are not being actively 
monitored at this time as per the guidance from NHS England and NHS 
Improvement. 
 
Next steps  
 
The health and care system is developing a detailed recovery plan to 
support the next stage of work in Rochdale and for the residents of 
Rochdale.  
Work with providers continues and the main focus in recommencing activity 
is on managing this safely for all concerned. 

 

Costs and Budget Summary 

 
5. There is a finance paper on the agenda for the June ICB which covers the 

approach for payments to NHS providers during the COVID-19 response, 

 

Risk and Policy Implications 

 
6. This paper is to provide an update and therefore there are no specific risks 

associated with it. 
 

Consultation 

 
7. This paper has been written in consultation with senior leaders from the 

SCF 

 

Background Papers Place of Inspection 

 

8. Letter from NHS England and 
NHS Improvement 28th March 
2020 (appendix) 

Number One Riverside, Smith Street, 
Rochdale 

 

Page 23



5 
 

For Further Information Contact: Nadia Baig 07896 996 301 
Nadiabaig@nhs.net 

 

Page 24



 

 
NHS England and NHS Improvement 

Publications approval reference: 001559 
 

To: 

Chief executives of all NHS trusts and foundation trusts 

CCG Accountable Officers  

 

Copy to: 

Chairs of NHS trusts, foundation trusts and CCG governing bodies 

Chairs of ICSs and STPs 

NHS Regional Directors 

 

28 March 2020 

Reducing burden and releasing capacity at NHS providers and commissioners to 

manage the COVID-19 pandemic 

We wrote to you on 17 March 2020 setting out important and urgent next steps on the 

NHS response to COVID-19.  Following this letter and detailed guidance to GPs we are 

writing today to provide further guidance to support you to free-up management capacity 

and resources. 

During this challenging period NHS England and NHS Improvement is committed to 

doing all it can to support providers and commissioners, allowing them to free up as 

much capacity as possible and prioritise their workload to be focused on doing what is 

necessary to manage the response to the COVID-19 pandemic. Further information is 

provided on the following pages. 

We will continue to review and monitor the situation and will remain agile in making 

further changes where necessary.  

We appreciate the incredible amount of commitment and hard work going on across the 

NHS in these challenging times.  

Yours sincerely  

 

Amanda Pritchard 

Chief Operating Officer, NHS England & NHS Improvement 

  

Page 25



1 
 

The system actions 

Changing NHS England and NHS Improvement engagement approaches with systems 

and organisations 

Oversight meetings will now be held by phone or video conference and will focus on 

critical issues. Teams will also review the frequency of these meetings on a case-by-case 

basis.  For our improvement resource, we have reprioritised their work to focus on areas 

directly relevant to the COVID-19 response:  

• GIRFT visits to trusts have been stood down with resources concentrated on 

supporting hospital discharge coordination 

• The outpatient transformation work is focused on video consultation and patient-

initiated follow up 

• We have prioritised our special measures support in agreement with CQC to 

ensure we support the most challenged in the right way to help them manage the 

COVID-19 pressures.  

  

Page 26



2 
 

1) Governance and meetings 

No. Areas of 
activity 

Detail  Actions 

1. Board and 
sub-board 
meetings   

Trusts and CCGs should continue to hold 
board meetings but streamline papers, focus 
agendas and hold virtually not face-to-face. No 
sanctions for technical quorum breaches (eg 
because of self-isolation)  
 
For board committee meetings, trusts should 
continue quality committees, but consider 
streamlining other committees (eg Audit and 
Risk and Remuneration committees) and 
where possible delay meetings till later in the 
year.   
 
While under normal circumstances the public 
can attend at least part of provider board 
meetings, Government social isolation 
requirements constitute ‘special reasons’ to 
avoid face to face gatherings as permitted by 
legislation 
 
All system meetings to be virtual by default 

Organisation to 
inform audit firms 
where necessary 
 
 

2. FT Governor 
meetings 

Face-to-face meetings should be stopped at 
the current time1 but ensure that governors are 
(i) informed of the reasons for stopping 
meetings and (ii) included in regular 
communications on response to COVID-19 eg 
via webinars/emails 
 

FTs to inform 
lead governor 

3. FT governor 
and 
membership 
processes 

FTs free to stop/delay governor elections 
where necessary 
Annual members’ meetings should be deferred 
Membership engagement should be limited to 
COVID-19 purposes 

FTs to inform 
lead governor 

4. Annual 
accounts 
and audit 

Deadlines for preparation and audit of 
accounts in 2019/20 are being extended. Detail 
was issued on 23 March 2020. 

Organisation to 
inform external 
auditors where 
necessary 

5. Quality 
accounts - 
preparation 

The deadline for quality accounts preparation 
of 30 June is specified in Regulations. We 
intend it will be deferred  

NHSE/I to inform 
DHSC 

6. Quality 
accounts 
and quality 

This work can be stopped Organisations to 
inform external 
auditors where 
necessary 

                                            
1 This may be a technical breach of FTs’ constitution but acceptable given Government guidance on social 
isolation 

Page 27



3 
 

No. Areas of 
activity 

Detail  Actions 

reports – 
assurance 

7. Annual 

report  

 

We are working with DHSC and HM Treasury 
on streamlining the annual report requirements 
– further guidance forthcoming   

NHSE/I and 
DHSC to prepare 
guidance in due 
course 

8 Decision-
making 
processes 

While having regard to their constitutions and 
agreed internal processes, organisations need 
to be capable of timely and effective decision-
making. This will include using specific 
emergency decision-making arrangements. 

 

 

  

Page 28



4 
 

2) Reporting and assurance 
 

No. Areas of activity Detail  

1. Constitutional 
standards (eg A&E, 
RTT, Cancer, 
Ambulance waits, 
MH LD measures) 

See Annex B 

2.  Friends and Family 
test 

Stop reporting requirement to NHS England and NHS 
Improvement 
 

3. Long-Term Plan: 
operational 
planning 

Paused  

4. Long-term Plan: 
system by default 

Put on hold all national System by Default development 

work (including work on CCG mergers and 20/21 guidance). 

However, NHSE/I actively encourages system working 

where it helps manage the response to COVID-19, providing 

support where possible. 

5. Long-Term Plan: 
Mental Health 

NHSE/I will maintain Mental Health Investment guarantee. 
 

6. Long-Term Plan: 
Learning Disability 
and Autism 

As for Mental Health, NHSE/I will maintain the investment 
guarantee.   
 

7. Long-Term Plan: 
Cancer 

NHSE/I will maintain its commitment and investment 
through the Cancer Alliances to improve survival rates for 
cancer. NHSE/I will work with Cancer Alliances to prioritise 
delivery of commitments that free up capacity and slow or 
stop those that do not, in a way that will release necessary 
resource to support the COVID-19 response. 

8. NHSE/I Oversight 
meetings 

Be held online. Streamlined agendas and focus on COVID-
19 issues and support needs  

9. Corporate Data 
Collections (eg 
licence self-certs, 
Annual 
Governance 
statement, 
mandatory NHS 
Digital 
submissions) 

Look to streamline and/or waive certain elements  
 
Delay the Forward Plan documents FTs are required to 
submit 
 
We will work with analytical teams and NHS Digital to 
suspend agreed non-essential data collections. 

10. Use of Resources 
assessments 

With the CQC suspending routine assessments, NHSE/I will 
suspend the Use of Resources assessments 

11. Continuing 
Healthcare 
Assessments 

Stop CHC assessments. 
Capacity tracker, currently mandated for care homes, is now 
also mandated for hospices and intermediate care facilities  

12. Provider 
transaction 
appraisals 

Complete April 2020 transactions, but potential for NHSE/I 
to de-prioritise or delay transactions appraisals if in the local 
interest given COVID-19 factors  

Page 29



5 
 

No. Areas of activity Detail  

 
 
CCG mergers 
 
 
Service 
reconfigurations 

 
Complete April 2020 CCG Mergers but delay work post April 
2020. 
 
Expect no new public consultations except in cases to 
support COVID-19 or build agreed new facilities. We will 
also streamline or waive, as appropriate, the process to 
review any reconfiguration proposals designed in response 
to COVID-19 

13. 7-day Services 
assurance 

Suspend the 7-day hospital services board assurance 
framework self-cert statement 

14. Clinical audit All national clinical audit, confidential enquiries and national 
joint registry data collection, including for national VTE risk 
assessment, can be suspended.  Analysis and preparation 
of current reports can continue at the discretion of the audit 
provider, where it does not impact front line clinical 
capacity.  Data collection for the child death database and 
MBRRACE-UK-perinatal surveillance data will continue as 
this is important in understanding the impact of COVID-19.   
 

15. Pathology services We need support from providers to manage pathology 
supplies which are crucial to COVID -19 testing. Trusts 
should not penalise those suppliers who are flexing their 
capacity to allow the NHS to focus on COVID-19 testing 
equipment, reagent, and consumables. 
 

 
 
 
  

Page 30



6 
 

3) Other areas including HR and staff-related activities 

No. Areas of activity Detail  

1. Mandatory training New training activities – refresher training for staff and new 
training to expand the number of ICU staff – is likely to be 
necessary. Reduce other mandatory training as appropriate 

2. Appraisals and 

revalidation 

Recommendation that appraisals are suspended from the 
date of this letter, unless there are exceptional circumstances 
agreed by both the appraisee and appraiser. This should 
immediately increase capacity in our workforce by allowing 
appraisers to return to clinical practice.   
 
The GMC has now deferred revalidation for all doctors who 
are due to be revalidated by September 2020. We request 
that all non-urgent or non-essential professional standards 
activity be suspended until further notice including medical 
appraisal and continuous professional development (CPD) 
 
The Nursing and Midwifery Council (NMC) is to initially 
extend the revalidation period for current registered nurses 
and midwives by an additional three months and is seeking 
further flexibility from the UK Government for the future. 
 

3. CCG clinical staff 
deployment 

Review internal needs in order to retain a skeleton staff for 
critical needs and redeploy the remainder to the frontline  
 
CCG Governing Body GP to focus on primary care provision 

4. Repurposing of 
non clinical staff 

Non-clinical staff to focus on supporting primary care and 
providers  

5. Enact business 
critical roles at 
CCGs  

To include support and hospital discharge, EPRR etc 

  

Page 31



7 
 

Annex A 

Whilst existing performance standards remain in place, we acknowledge that the way 

these are managed will need to change for the duration of the COVID-19 response. Our 

approach to those standards most directly impacted by the COVID-19 situation is set out 

below:    

 

A&E and Ambulance performance - monitoring and management against the 4-hour 

standard and ambulance performance (Ambulance Quality Indicators: System Indicators) 

will continue nationally and locally, to support system resilience. Simultaneously, local 

teams should maintain flexibility to manage demand for urgent care during the 

emergency period.  

 

RTT – Monitoring and management of our RTT ambitions will continue, to ensure 

consistency and continuity of reporting and to understand the impact of the suspension of 

non-urgent elective activity and the subsequent recovery of the waiting list position that 

will be required. The wider announcements on suspension of the usual PBR national 

tariff payment architecture and associated administrative / transactional processes mean 

that, financial sanctions for breaches of 52+ week waiting patients occurring from 1st April 

2020 onwards will also be suspended. 

 

Recording of clock starts and stops should continue in line with current practice for 

people who are self-isolating, people in vulnerable groups, patients who cancel or do not 

attend due to fears around entering a hospital setting, and patients who have their 

appointments cancelled by the hospital. The existing RTT recording and reporting 

guidance is recognised across the country as the key reference point for counting RTT 

activity and specific clarification of how this should be applied, in the scenarios described 

above, will be provided in due course.  

Cancer – Cancer treatment should continue, and that close attention should continue to 

be paid to referral and treatment volumes to make sure that cancer cases continue to be 

identified, diagnosed and treated in a timely manner. Clarification has already been 

released to the system through the COVID-19 incident SPOC to confirm that appropriate 

clinical priority should continue to be given to the diagnosis and treatment of cancer with 

appropriate flexibility of provision to account for infection control. We have also confirmed 

modifications to v10 Cancer Waiting Times guidance to allow for this to be appropriately 

recorded. In addition, it has been agreed that the 28-day Faster Diagnosis Standard 

(which was due to come into effect from Wednesday 1 April) will still have data collected, 

but will not be subject to formal performance management. The Cancer PTL data 

collection will continue and we expect it to continue to be used locally to ensure that 

patients continue to be tracked and treated in accordance with their clinical priority. 

 

  

Page 32



8 
 

Annex B 

Data collections/reporting 

NHS Digital maintains a significant volume of data which is mandated for return from 
commissioners and providers2. Much of this data is routinely submitted and imposes 
minimal burden on local systems.  

It will be important to maintain a flow of core operational intelligence to provide continued 

understanding of system pressure and how this translates into changes in coronavirus 

and other demand, activity, capacity and performance – and in some areas it may be 

necessary to go further to add to and extend existing collections. For this reason, and to 

ensure effective performance recovery efforts can begin immediately after the intense 

period of COVID-19 response activity has subsided, the majority of data collections 

remain in place.  

Notwithstanding the above, a subset of the existing central collections will be suspended, 

and these returns will not need to be submitted between 1 April 2020 to 30 June 2020: 

• Urgent Operations Cancelled (monthly sitrep) 

• Delayed Transfers of Care (monthly return) 

• Diagnostics PTL 

• RTT PTL 

• Cancelled elective operations 

• Audiology 

• Mixed-Sex Accommodation 

• Venous Thromboembolism (VTE) 

• 26-Week Choice 

• Pensions impact data collection 

• Ambulance Quality Indicators (Clinical Outcomes) 

• Dementia Assessment and Referral (DAR) 
  

                                            
2 https://digital.nhs.uk/isce/publication/nhs-standard-contract-approved-collections 

Page 33

https://digital.nhs.uk/isce/publication/nhs-standard-contract-approved-collections
https://digital.nhs.uk/isce/publication/nhs-standard-contract-approved-collections


9 
 

Annex C 

Data Security and Protection Toolkit Submission 2019/20 

It is critically important that the NHS and Social Care remains resilient to cyber-attacks 

during this period of COVID-19 response. The Data Security & Protection Toolkit helps 

organisations check that they are in a good position to do that. Most organisations will 

already have completed, or be near completion of, their DSPT return for 2019/20.      

The submission date for 2019/20 DSPT remains 31 March 2020. However, in light of 

events NHSX recognises that it is likely to be difficult for many organisations to fully 

complete the toolkit without impacting on their COVID-19 response. NHSX has therefore 

taken the decision that: 

• Organisations that have completed and fully meet the standard will be given 

'Standards Met' status, as in previous years.  

• Where NHS trusts, CCGs, CSUs, Local Authorities (including Social Care 

providers), Primary care providers (GP, Optometry, dentist and pharmacies) and 

DHSC ALBS do not fully complete or meet the standard because doing so 

would impact their COVID-19 response this will be considered sufficient and 

they will be awarded 'Approaching Standards' status and will face no 

compliance action. It will be possible to upgrade from 'Approaching Standards' 

status to 'Standards Met' status through the year. The cyber risk remains high. All 

organisations must continue to maintain their patching regimes and Trusts, CSUs 

and CCGs must continue to comply with the strict 48hr and 14 day requirements 

in relation to acknowledgment of, and mitigation for, any High Severity Alerts 

issued by NHS Digital (allowing for frontline service continuity). 

• Organisations that have not taken reasonable steps to complete their toolkit 

submission for 2019/20 will be given 'Standards Not Met' and may face 

compliance activity, as per previous years. 

For any queries please contact or for further information please go to 

https://www.dsptoolkit.nhs.uk/News 

Page 34

https://www.dsptoolkit.nhs.uk/News
https://www.dsptoolkit.nhs.uk/News


 

Report to Integrated Commissioning Board 
 

 

Date of Meeting 30th June 2020    
Portfolio Public Health and Wellbeing   
Report Author Sandra Croasdale   
Public/Private Document Public   
    

 

Local Care Organisation and Strategic Commissioning Function 
Development – Next Steps 

 

 

                                           Executive Summary 

 
1.1 During 2019/2020 the Integrated Commissioning Board (ICB) agreed a phased 

approach to the development of the LCO  

1.2  ICB received an update on the impact of COVID-19 on Local Care Organisation 

(LCO) and Strategic Commissioning Function (SCF) development at its May 

2020 meeting. This paper explained that the contract from Phase 3 had not been 

signed as a result of the command and control mechanisms being enacted by 

the Department of Health. The paper also set out the initial learning from the 

pandemic which would need to be taken into account in the next phase of 

development.  

1.3 This paper provides a high-level roadmap for the development of the LCO and 

SCF during 2020/21 to prepare for an updated LCO contract to be in place by 

April 2021. It describes the original phasing plan, the current position and 

progress made and the considerations that will inform the next phase.  

 

                                             Recommendation 

 
2.1 To note the contents of the report and to agree the direction of travel for the 

development of the scope and phasing of the LCO.  
 

                                      Reason for Recommendation 

 
3.1 To support the ongoing development of health and care services. 
 

Page 35

Agenda Item 8



 
 

                                       Key Points for Consideration 

 
4.1   The original scope and phasing plan is given below for reference:  

 
 
4.2 This set out the ambition for the LCO outcome-based contract to include the 

existing contract established throughout 2019/20 with the addition of a 
programme budget approach to urgent care. As previously described in the May 
ICB paper, whilst this contract was not signed as a result of the pandemic, work 
has continued to progress across the system, in the same way as if the contract 
were in place, taking collective ownership of the urgent care system. Examples 
have been previously provided such as the development of the COVID Hot Hub, 
Virtual Hospital, close working with the care sector and shared and collaborative 
leadership. 

 
4.3 The LCO is continuing to develop this work and has established a work 

programme, “Health and Care at Home” which describes the shift of hospital 
activity into the community, home or self-management. Appendix 1 gives a very 
high-level overview of priority issues and the work programme which is 
scheduled to be implemented in October 2020. 

 
4.4 The original phasing plan described phase 4 as having the programme budget 

for both urgent and planned (elective) care in the LCO contract from April 2021. 
On the basis of the progress made to date on the urgent care system in response 
to COVID, it is considered that including the urgent care programme budget from 
April 2021 is our baseline for further development of the contract. 

 
4.5 Further consideration needs to be given to any additional services/budget to be 

included, either directly through the contract or through alignment with the LCO. 
Our learning to date would indicate that it would be preferable to take a more 
rounded approach to all services, considering in more detail areas that would 
have specific benefit from being included in the LCO. It is important that our 
thinking takes into account whether services are commissioned locally, across 
the North East sector or by Greater Manchester. The following describes the 
considerations that we propose to take account of in arriving at the scope of the 
LCO in 2021/22. 

 
4.6 Planned Care 
 Work commenced in 2019/20 looking at the development of pathways for 

respiratory and cardiology. A proposal for consideration is to look at the inclusion 

Phase Year Overview of Proposed Phase

One (Complete) 2018/19 Identification of PAHT as host provider

Two (Complete) 2019/20 Limited number of contracts consolidated into a lead 
provider LCO Contract

Three (Proposed) 2020/21 Programme budgeting approach to Urgent Care

Four (Proposed) 2021/22
2022/23

Phase three with the addition of planned (elective) care
Operate as a shadow year of the ICP Contract

Five (Proposed) 2023/24 Full ICP Contract goes live

Page 36



of programme budgets in the LCO bringing together all contracts associated with 
the relevant pathways. An example of this for respiratory could include: 

 The core plus elements relating to respiratory already in the LCO scope 
(note relates to the respiratory primary care activity in the Core +2 contract 
already within the LCO contract and does not include all primary care 
respiratory activity) 

 The community contracts relating to respiratory services  

 Acute spend on respiratory  
  
 The programme budget would then be managed by the LCO on an outcomes 

basis to support improvements across the pathways of care. The development 
of end to end pathways brings with it the advantage of an enabling a focus on 
reducing inequalities, promoting prevention and overall health improvement, 
enabling a shift over time in activity from hospital. 

 
 Areas for consideration for inclusion as programme budgets and inclusion in the 

LCO approach include, but is not exclusive to: 

 Respiratory (work underway to develop pathways) 

 Cardiology (work underway to develop pathways) 

 Ophthalmology  

 Musculoskeletal (MSK) 

 Endocrine (Diabetes) 
   
4.7 Children’s Health 
 Children’s services have not formally been integrated into the LCO. For urgent 

care the children’s pathways are included in the urgent care programme budget. 
Potential areas for development in the LCO are: 

 The community nursing services integration into the NCA provides an 
opportunity to look more closely at this area  

 Children’s Palliative care  

 Children’s respiratory pathways linked to the overall development for 
adults outlined above 

 Children’s gastroenterology and allergy services 
 
4.8 Adult Social Care 
 Rochdale is committed to a neighbourhood, citizen and community led approach 

to support transformation of health, social care and community care services at 
a neighbourhood level. This is a prevention-based approach as outlined in the 
locality plan:  

 
‘Prevention will be part of everything we do, and we will support our residents 
and workforce to take care of themselves and others. We will take action to stop 
problems from arising or becoming worse.’ 
 
Our local council corporate plan commits us to working towards collective change 
where ‘individuals will practice self-help and make choices so that they are able 
to look after themselves and others.’ This begins with us as a workforce working 
together with a shared value base. 

  

Page 37



 The LCO is also committed to ensuring that its approach within neighbourhoods 
adds value and builds upon existing partnerships, networks and service 
approaches currently within each neighbourhood. We will therefore continue to 
look for opportunities to align services to the LCO to: 

  

 embed a prevention-based approach 

 bring staff together to coordinate and plan activities at neighbourhood 
level and contribute to wider Public Sector Reform (PSR) agenda around 
neighbourhood working.  

 ensure that neighbourhood health and wellbeing initiatives are co-
produced and involve local residents. 

 build and further develop community based assets. 

 ensure that current activities are built upon to make sure they are 
connected and sustainable. 

 ensure communities who do not identify with a place feel truly 
represented. 

 engage with local residents to identify grass roots ideas and priorities  
 
4.9 Adult Mental Health 

We are committed to proactively aligning community mental health teams and 
third sector services to the integrated neighbourhood teams approach as 
discussed above.  

 
 

4.11 Timescales   
 A high-level timescale for determination of the LCO scope and subsequent 

contract and service alignment is given below: 
 
  

Timescale Activity 

July to 
September 2020 

 LCO continue to develop delivery model 

 SCF further work to develop commissioning 
intentions 

October 2020  Agree LCO scope and service alignment 

November 2020 
to January 2021 

 Develop service specification for LCO contract 

 Develop memorandum of understanding (MOU) 
for aligned services 

February to 
March 2021 

 Finalise contracting and MOU arrangements 

April 2021 
 Contract go live 

 Aligned services implemented 

 
  

Page 38



 

                                        Costs and Budget Summary 

 
5.1 There are no cost implications at this time. 
 

                                      Risk and Policy Implications 

 
6.1 There are no significant risks at this time. 
 

                                               Consultation 

 
7.1 This paper has been written in consultation with senior commissioners. 
 
 

Background Papers Place of Inspection 

 

8. None applicable  

 

For Further Information Contact: Sandra Croasdale, 07747 473888, 
scroasdale@nhs.net 

 

  

Page 39



Appendix 1 
 

 

 
 

Page 40



 

Page 41



Document is Restricted

Page 42

Agenda Item 10
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A

of the Local Government Act 1972.



Document is Restricted

Page 55

Agenda Item 11
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	6 Health and Social Care Pooled Budget Monitoring Report- May 2020
	7 NHS and Care standards monitoring and  approach
	Appendix 1  28 March 2020 Reducing burden and releasing capacity at NHS providers and commissioners to manage the COVID-19 pandemic

	8 Local Care Organisation and Strategic Commissioning Function Development - Next Steps
	10 COVID 19 CCG Finance
	11 Approval to agree a commissioning model for Extra Care Housing

